
Canopy Community 
Development District 

Agenda Package 
December 1, 2020 



Canopy 
  Community Development District  

219 E. Livingston Street, Orlando, Florida 32801 
Phone: 407-841-5524 – Fax: 407-839-1526 

November 24, 2020 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Canopy Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Canopy Community Development District 
will be held Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at 11:00 AM. The meeting will be held at Premier 
Fine Homes located at 4807 Capital Circle NW Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303; or 
by calling in via 267-930-4000 with passcode 401214. Following is the advance agenda for 
the meeting: 

 
1. Roll Call 

 

2. Public Comment Period (1Speakers will fill out a card and submit it to the District Manager 
prior to the beginning of the meeting) 

 

3. Organizational Matters 
A. Administration of Oath of Office to Newly Elected Board Members 
B. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01 Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the 

Landowners’ Election  
C. Election of Officers 
D. Consideration of Resolution 2021-02 Electing Officers 

 

4. Approval of Minutes for the October 6, 2020 Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 

5. Acceptance of Minutes for the November 3, 2020 Landowners’ Meeting 
 

6. Approval of Annual Auditor Engagement Letter with Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC for Fiscal Year 
2020 

 

7. Consideration of Work Authorization with Halff Associates, Inc. for Engineering Services Related to 
Boundary Amendment – to be Provided Under Separate Cover 

 

8. Ratification of Change Order #3 to Contract with Sandco, LLC for Welaunee Boulevard, Segment 3A and 
Segment 2 Turn Lanes Project 

 

9. Ratification of Work Authorization with GPI for RFP Services for Welaunee Boulevard Segment 
3B 

 

10. Ratification of Landscaping Services Agreement with Keep It Grassy, LLC 
 

11. Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 
B. Engineer 
C. District Manager’s Report 

i. Approval of Check Register Summary & Requisition Summary 
ii. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

12. Other Business 
 

13. Supervisors Requests 
 

14. Adjournment 
 

1 Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes 



 
The second order of business is the Public Comment Period where the public has an opportunity to 
be heard on propositions coming before the Board as reflected on the agenda, and any other items. 
Speakers must fill out a Request to Speak form and submit it to the District Manager prior to the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
The third order of business is Organizational Matters. Section A is the Administration of Oath of 
Office to the Newly Elected Board members with copies enclosed. Section B is the Consideration 
of Resolution 2021-01 Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the Landowners’ Election. A copy 
of Resolution 2021-01 is enclosed for your review and approval. Section D is the Consideration of 
Resolution 2021-02 Electing Officers and a copy of Resolution 2021-02 is enclosed for your review 
and approval. 

 
The fourth order of business is the Approval of Minutes for the October 6th, 2020 meeting. A copy 
of the minutes is enclosed for your review and approval. 
 
The fifth order of business is the Acceptance of Minutes for the November 3rd, 2020 Landowners’ 
Meeting. A copy of the minutes is enclosed for your review. 

 
The sixth order of business is the Approval of the Annual Auditor Engagement Letter with Carr, Riggs 
& Ingram, LLC for Fiscal Year 2020. A copy of the letter is enclosed for your review and approval. 

 
The eighth order of business is Ratification of Change Order #3 to Contract with Sandco, LLC for 
Welaunee Boulevard, Segment 3A and Segment 2 Turn Lanes Project. A copy of the change order 
is enclosed for your review. 

 
The nineth order of business is the Ratification of the Work Authorization with GPI for REP 
Services for Welaunee Boulevard Segment 3B. A copy of the work authorization is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
The tenth order of business is the Ratification of Landscaping Services Agreement with Keep It 
Grassy, LLC. A copy of the agreement along with a breakdown of the maintenance package is 
enclosed for your review. 

 
The eleventh order of business is Staff Reports. Section C is the District Manager’s Report. Sub-
Section 1 is the Approval of Check Register Summary and Requisition Summary, which are 
enclosed for your review and approval. Sub-Section 2 is the Balance Sheet and Income Statement 
for your review. 

 
The balance of the agenda will be discussed at the meeting. In the meantime, if you should have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

Darrin Mossing 
District Manager 

 
 
CC: Jennifer Kilinski, District Counsel 

Travis Justice, District Engineer Darrin 
Mossing Jr., GMS 
 

 
Enclosures



AGENDA 



CCaannooppyy 
CCoommmmuunniittyy DDeevveellooppmmeenntt DDiissttrriicctt 

MMeeeettiinngg AAggeennddaa 
 
Tuesday             Premier Fine Homes 
December 1, 2020                                                                          4807 Capital Circle NW Suite 200 
11:00 a.m.   Tallahassee, Florida 32303 

Call In #: 267-930-4000 
Participation Passcode #: 401214 

 
 
 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Public Comment Period (1Speakers will fill out a card and submit it to the District 
Manager prior to the beginning of the meeting) 

 

3. Organizational Matters 

A. Administration of Oath of Office to Newly Elected Board Members 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01 Canvassing and Certifying the Results of 
the Landowners’ Election 

C. Election of Officers 

D. Consideration of Resolution 2021-02 Electing Officers 
 

4. Approval of Minutes for the October 6, 2020 Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 

5. Acceptance of Minutes for the November 3, 2020 Landowners’ Meeting 
 

6. Approval of Annual Auditor Engagement Letter with Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC for 
Fiscal Year 2020 

 
7. Consideration of Work Authorization with Halff Associates, Inc. for Engineering Services 

Related to Boundary Amendment – to be Provided Under Separate Cover 
 

8. Ratification of Change Order #3 to Contract with Sandco, LLC for Welaunee Boulevard, 
Segment 3A and Segment 2 Turn Lanes Project 

 

9. Ratification of Work Authorization with GPI for RFP Services for Welaunee Boulevard 
Segment 3B 

 

10. Ratification of Landscaping Services Agreement with Keep It Grassy, LLC 
 

11. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

B. Engineer 

 

 



 

C. District Manager’s Report 

i. Approval of Check Register Summary & Requisition Summary 

ii. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

12. Other Business 
 

13. Supervisors Requests 
 

14. Adjournment 
 
 

1 Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes 



SECTION III 



SECTION A 







SECTION B 



RESOLUTION 2021-01 

A RESOLUTION CANVASSING  AND  CERTIFYING THE 
RESULTS OF THE LANDOWNERS' ELECTION OF THE 
CANOPY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT HELD 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 190.006(2), FLORIDA STATUTES 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(2), Florida Statute, a landowners' 
meeting is required to be held within 90 days of the District's creation and every two years 
following the creation of a Community Development District for the purpose of electing 
five (5) supervisors for the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, following proper notice of once a week for 2 consecutive weeks in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the area of the District,  the  last day of such publication 
to be not fewer than 14 days or more than 28 days before the date of the election, such 
landowners meeting was held on November 3, 2020 at which the below-recited persons 
were duly elected by virtue of the votes cast in their respective favor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors by means of this Resolution desire to 

canvas the votes and declare and certify the results of said election; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CANOPY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. The following persons are found, certified, and declared to have been duly elected 
as Supervisors of and for the District, having been elected by the votes cast in their 
favor as follows: 

 

Supervisor # of Votes Terms 
 

Tom Ashbury                                     380           4 Year Term 
 

Colleen Castille                380                    4 Year Term 

David Brady                 375                    2 Year Term 
 

 
2. The terms of office shall commence immediately upon the adoption of this Resolution: 

Adopted this 1st day of December, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 







SECTION D 



RESOLUTION 2021-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CANOPY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ELECTING 
THE OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the Canopy Community Development District (the "District") is a local unit 

of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District ("Board") desires  to  elect  the  

Officers of the District. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE CANOPY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

Section 1. ______________________ is elected Chairperson. 
 

Section 2.    _______________________ is elected Vice-Chairperson. 

Section 3. 
 

Section 4. 

_____________________ is elected Secretary. 
 

______________________ is elected Assistant Secretary. 

______________________ is elected Assistant Secretary. 

______________________ is elected Assistant Secretary. 

______________________ is elected Assistant Secretary. 
 

Section 5. 
 

Section 6. 

______________________ 
 

______________________ 

is elected Treasurer. 
 

is elected Assistant Treasurer. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of December, 2020 . 
 
 
ATTEST: CANOPY COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 



SECTION IV 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
CANOPY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Canopy Community Development 

District was held Tuesday, October 6, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at the South Wood Community Center, 

4675 Grove Park Drive, Tallahassee, Florida and via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 Tom Asbury Chairman 
 Gregg Patterson Vice Chairman 
 John “Al” Russell Assistant Secretary 
 Colleen Castille Assistant Secretary 
 David Brady Assistant Secretary 
 

 Also present were: 

 Darrin Mossing District Manager 
 Jennifer Kilinski District Counsel 
 Tim Stackhouse District Engineer 
 Darrin Mossing, Jr. GMS 
 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Mossing called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. and called the roll.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period 

 Ms. Marciniak asked is there any progress in the development of the pool and the 

clubhouse? Mr. Asbury stated it took a while to get the permit for the pool and we now have that 

permit. The pool contactor is supposed to start tomorrow. As to the clubhouse the price of lumber 

increased by 170% in the last month, we had some things to work through and hopefully they will 

be starting in another week.  

 Ms. Marciniak asked is the completion date still December/January or will this delay it 

more? Mr. Asbury stated it depends on the weather and by March we should be in good shape.  

 Ms. Marciniak stated we have spoken with Jason with regard to Keep it Grassy and he is 

not keeping it up. Will this be up for discussion today with regard to his contract being canceled 



October 6, 2020 Canopy CDD 

2	

and looking at the other possibilities that Jason has looked into as to hiring someone else. The 

development does not look up to par and the community is unhappy with their performance.  

 Ms. Kilinski stated this is the first I heard about that. We have a contract for certain of the 

public lands with Keep it Grassy, so it depends on where the deficiencies are being noted. I think 

staff can work with onsite folks to identify where those deficiencies are and give them a final 

opportunity to cure those and get other proposals. The threshold isn’t such that we have to go out 

and publicly bid it. We have gone through two landscape contractors finding folks that are 

responsive and capable of doing the work well but we can look at other proposals to bring back to 

the board at a future meeting and in the meantime identify the deficiencies, give them some written 

warning and notice under the contract and address that at your next meeting.  

 Mr. Asbury stated we will work on solving the landscape issue. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes  
 July 21, 2020 Special Meeting 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Russell seconded by Mr. Patterson with all in 
favor the minutes of the July 21, 2020 special meeting were approved 
as presented. 

 

 September 1, 2020 Regular Meeting 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Patterson seconded by Mr. Russell with all in 
favor the minutes of the September 1, 2020 meeting were approved 
as presented. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Change Order to Agreement 
for Clubhouse Construction 

 Mr. Mossing stated the change order was enclosed in your agenda package and consists of 

the removal of two pickleball courts and volleyball court and add one tennis court. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Castille seconded by Mr. Russell with all in 
favor the change order to the contract with Baycrest Corporation for 
the change in plans to include one tennis court and two pickleball 
courts with no change in contract price was approved. 

 



October 6, 2020 Canopy CDD 

3	

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Change Order for Welaunee 
Boulevard, Segment 3A Project 

 Mr. Asbury stated they value engineered this contract. The roundabout is the main thing 

that changed, the way it was originally designed was very expensive and the city accepted a new 

design and there were some landscaping changes. Those changes resulted in a decrease to the 

contract of $316,148.10 ending with a contract price of $4,466,053.40. the city and Blueprint have 

agreed to this change order. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Asbury seconded by Mr. Patterson with all in 
favor the change order for Welaunee Boulevard segment 3A project 
with Sandco for a net decrease of $316,148.10 was ratified. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Work Authorization with 
Dantin Consulting for Welaunee Boulevard 
CEI Services 

 Mr. Mossing stated the work authorization was enclosed in your agenda package and is in 

the amount of $10,500. 

 Mr. Asbury stated we put this out to our approved engineering firms and Keith Dantin 

came back with a reasonable number and that is the direction we chose to go.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Brady seconded by Ms. Castille with all in favor 
the work authorization wit Dantin Consulting for Welaunee 
Boulevard CEI services in an amount not to exceed $10,500 was 
ratified. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of the Segment 3B Construction 
Project Agreement with Sandco to Maintain 
Bid Pricing 

 Mr. Mossing stated the agreement to hold the bid pricing was enclosed in your agenda 

package. Sandco has agreed to hold their bid pricing until March 13, 2021. Ms. Kilinski stated we 

did this for 3A as well given the anticipated schedule for 3A followed by 3B to make sure we had 

the pricing secured based on the discussions we have had on the interlocal agreement, which is 

next on the agenda.  

 



October 6, 2020 Canopy CDD 

4	

On MOTION by Mr. Russell seconded by Mr. Asbury with all in 
favor segment 3B construction project agreement with Sandco to 
maintain bid pricing was ratified. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update on Amendment to Interlocal 
Agreement with City of Tallahassee and 
Blueprint 

 Ms. Kilinski stated at the last meeting the board approved in substantial form an amended 

and restated interlocal agreement. That was considered by both Blueprint and the City of 

Tallahassee commission and was approved in the same form you previously approved, so we don’t 

need to bring that back for ratification because there have been no changes since your last approval. 

That has been executed and recorded and now we are waiting on the recording of bonds related to 

the construction of Segment 3A. The district’s contractor as well as Blueprint has executed those 

bonds, we are just waiting on the city’s signature. We have already had a preconstruction meeting 

this past Friday and I anticipate the notice to proceed to come in the next couple of days. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
 A. Attorney 
 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager 
 i. Approval of Check Register Summary and Requisition Summary 
  

On MOTION by Mr. Russell seconded by Mr. Asbury with all in 
favor the check run summary and the requisition summary were 
approved. 

 

 ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 



October 6, 2020 Canopy CDD 

5	

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests  

 There being none,  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Castille seconded by Mr. Patterson with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at11:20 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION V 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
CANOPY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The Canopy Community Development District held a Landowners’ Meeting on Tuesday, 

November 3, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at Hopping, Green and Sams, PA, 119 S. Monroe St. #300, 

Tallahassee, Florida and via Conference Call. 

 

 Present were: 

 Tom Asbury Landowner 
 Darrin Mossing District Manager 
 Lauren Gentry Hopping, Green and Sams, PA 
  
  
 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Determination of the Number of Voting Units 

Represented 

 Mr. Mossing stated there are 380 units represented.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order 

 Mr. Mossing called to order the meeting of the landowners Tuesday, November 3, 2020 at 

11:00 AM at the office of Hopping, Green and Sams, P.A., 1109 South Monroe Street, Suite 300, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Election of a Chairman for the Purpose of 

Conducting the Landowners’ Meeting  

 Mr. Asbury stated	I	will	elect	Darrin	Mossing	as	Chairman	for	purpose	of	conducting	

landowners	meeting.	

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Nominations for Position of Supervisor 

Mr.	Asbury	stated	I	nominate	myself,	Colleen	Castille	and	David	Brady	for	position	of	

Supervisor.	

 



November 3, 2020 Canopy CDD 

2	

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Casting of Ballots 

 Mr. Ashbury provided an official ballot and Mr. Mossing continued on to the next order of 

business. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ballot Tabulation 

 Mr. Mossing stated	that	Tom	Asbury	and	Colleen	Castille	both	received	380	votes	

and	David	Brady	received	375	votes.	

	

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Landowner’s Questions and Comments  

 There being none, Mr. Ashbury adjourned the Landowners’ Meeting at 11:05am. 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION VI 



 
 
 
 
October 21, 2020 
 
Canopy Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
135 W. Central Boulevard 
Orlando, FL, 32801 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Canopy Community 
Development District for the year ended September 30, 2020. We will audit the financial statements 
of  the  governmental  activities, each major  fund,  and  the  aggregate  remaining  fund  information, 
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements of Canopy Community Development District as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2020. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain 
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), 
to  supplement  Canopy  Community  Development  District’s  basic  financial  statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part 
of our engagement, we will apply certain  limited procedures to Canopy Community Development 
District’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic  financial  statements.  We  will  not  express  an  opinion  or  provide  any  assurance  on  the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  
 
1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
2) Budgetary Comparison Schedule. 
 
Audit Objectives 
 
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are 
fairly  presented,  in  all material  respects,  in  conformity with U.S.  generally  accepted  accounting 
principles and to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second 
paragraph when  considered  in  relation  to  the  financial  statements as a whole. Our audit will be 
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards  for  financial audits contained  in Government Auditing Standards,  issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of Canopy 
Community  Development  District  and  other  procedures we  consider  necessary  to  enable  us  to 
express  such  opinions. We will  issue  a written  report  upon  completion  of  our  audit  of  Canopy 



Community Development District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board 
of  Supervisors  of  Canopy  Community  Development  District. We  cannot  provide  assurance  that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise  in which  it  is necessary  for us to 
modify our opinions or add emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other 
than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable 
to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express 
opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement. 
 
 We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the 
financial statements and compliance with the provisions of  laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as 
required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and 
other matters will  include a paragraph  that  states  (1)  that  the purpose of  the  report  is  solely  to 
describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) 
that the report  is an  integral part of an audit performed  in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state 
that  the  report  is not  suitable  for any other purpose.  If during our audit we become aware  that 
Canopy Community Development District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed 
in  the  terms of  this engagement, we will  communicate  to management  and  those  charged with 
governance  that an audit  in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing  standards and  the 
standards  for  financial  audits  contained  in  Government  Auditing  Standards may  not  satisfy  the 
relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
 
Audit Procedures—General 
  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to 
be examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also  includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of  significant  accounting  estimates  made  by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free  of  material  misstatement,  whether  from  (1)  errors,  (2)  fraudulent  financial  reporting,  (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to  the government or  to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of  the government. 
Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse  in financial audits nor do 
they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste and abuse. 
 
Because of the  inherent  limitations of an audit, combined with the  inherent  limitations of  internal 
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable 
risk exists that some material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the 
audit  is  properly  planned  and  performed  in  accordance  with  U.S.  generally  accepted  auditing 
standards  and  Government  Auditing  Standards.  In  addition,  an  audit  is  not  designed  to  detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct 
and material effect on the  financial statements. However, we will  inform the appropriate  level of 



management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations 
of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and 
of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as auditors  is  limited to the 
period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as 
auditors.  
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in 
the accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation 
of receivables and certain other assets and  liabilities by correspondence with selected  individuals, 
funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations from 
your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the 
conclusion  of  our  audit,  we  will  require  certain  written  representations  from  you  about  your 
responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
Audit Procedures—Internal Control 
  
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including 
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements 
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  Tests of controls may be 
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and 
detecting  errors  and  fraud  that  are material  to  the  financial  statements  and  to  preventing  and 
detecting misstatements resulting  from  illegal acts and other noncompliance matters  that have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope 
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we 
will  communicate  to management  and  those  charged with  governance  internal  control  related 
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government 
Auditing Standards. 
  
Audit Procedures—Compliance 
  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of Canopy Community Development District’s compliance with 
the  provisions  of  applicable  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  agreements,  and  grants.  However,  the 
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express 
such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
   



Other Services 
  
We will also assist  in preparing  the  financial statements and related notes of Canopy Community 
Development District  in  conformity with U.S.  generally  accepted  accounting  principles  based  on 
information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government 
Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The 
other  services are  limited  to  the  financial  statement  services previously defined. We,  in our  sole 
professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
We will also examine  the District’s compliance with  the  requirements of Section 218.415, Florida 
Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, as of September 30, 2020. Our examination will be 
conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. Accordingly,  it will  include examining, on a test basis, your records and other 
procedures  to obtain evidence necessary  to enable us  to express our opinion. Our  report will be 
addressed  to  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  District.  We  cannot  provide  assurance  that  an 
unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise  in which  it  is necessary  for us  to 
modify our opinion. If our opinion is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or are unable to form or have 
not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or may withdraw from this engagement. 
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Management  is  responsible  for  designing,  implementing,  establishing,  and maintaining  effective 
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including evaluating and monitoring 
ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and 
regulations;  and  ensuring  that  management  and  financial  information  is  reliable  and  properly 
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance 
with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the 
selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements and all accompanying  information  in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements. 
  
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to 
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing 
us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the 
purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we 
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 
  
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and 
for  confirming  to  us  in  the  written  representation  letter  that  the  effects  of  any  uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 



presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 
 
You are  responsible  for  the design and  implementation of programs and controls  to prevent and 
detect  fraud, and  for  informing us about all known or  suspected  fraud affecting  the government 
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others 
where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include 
informing  us  of  your  knowledge  of  any  allegations  of  fraud  or  suspected  fraud  affecting  the 
government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, 
or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies 
with  applicable  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  agreements,  and  grants  and  for  taking  timely  and 
appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
or grant agreements that we report. 
  
You are  responsible  for  the preparation of  the  supplementary  information, which we have been 
engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  You agree to 
include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates 
that we have  reported on  the  supplementary  information. You also agree  to  include  the audited 
financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report 
thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that 
(1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; 
(2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in 
accordance with GAAP;  (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed  from 
those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you 
have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the supplementary information. 
  
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous  financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies 
related to the objectives discussed  in the Audit Objectives section of this  letter. This responsibility 
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations 
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are 
also  responsible  for  providing  management’s  views  on  our  current  findings,  conclusions,  and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and 
format for providing that information. 
  
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related 
notes  and  any  other  nonaudit  services we  provide.  You will  be  required  to  acknowledge  in  the 
management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and 
related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes 
prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the 
nonaudit services by designating an  individual, preferably  from senior management, with suitable 
skill,  knowledge, or experience; evaluate  the adequacy and  results of  those  services; and accept 
responsibility for them. 
   



Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations 
we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 
  
We will  provide  copies  of  our  reports  to  the  District;  however, management  is  responsible  for 
distribution of the reports and the  financial statements. Unless restricted by  law or regulation, or 
containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for 
public inspection. 
 
The  audit  documentation  for  this  engagement  is  the  property  of  Carr,  Riggs &  Ingram,  LLC  and 
constitutes  confidential  information.  However,  subject  to  applicable  laws  and  regulations,  audit 
documentation  and  appropriate  individuals will be made  available upon  request  and  in  a  timely 
manner to the Florida Auditor General or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect 
funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, 
to resolve audit  findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such 
request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of 
CRI personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation 
to  the  aforementioned  parties.  These  parties may  intend,  or  decide,  to  distribute  the  copies  or 
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
Public Records.  Auditor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, 
comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically shall: 

 
a.  Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the services or 

work set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
b.  Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the District with 

a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and 

 
c.  Ensure  that public  records  that are exempt or  confidential and exempt  from public 

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the 
duration of the contract term and following completion of the Agreement if the Auditor 
does not transfer the records to the District; and 

 
d.  Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all public records 

in possession of the Auditor or keep and maintain public records required by the District 
to perform the service or work provided for in this Agreement.  If the Auditor transfers 
all public records to the District upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall 
destroy  (except as  required by  regulation or professional  standard  to maintain  such 
records) any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records upon 
completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable requirements for 
retaining  public  records.   All  records  stored  electronically must  be  provided  to  the 



District, upon request from the District’s custodian of public records, in a format that is 
compatible with the information technology systems of the District. 

 
Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating to this Agreement 
must be made directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3), Florida Statutes.  If notified by 
the  District  of  a  public  records  request  for  records  not  in  the  possession  of  the  District  but  in 
possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide such records to the District or allow the records 
to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.  Auditor acknowledges that should Auditor fail 
to provide  the public  records  to  the District within a  reasonable  time, Auditor may be subject  to 
penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes.   
 
IF  THE  AUDITOR  HAS  QUESTIONS  REGARDING  THE  APPLICATION  OF  CHAPTER  119,  FLORIDA 
STATUTES,  TO  THE  AUDITOR’S  DUTY  TO  PROVIDE  PUBLIC  RECORDS  RELATING  TO  THIS 
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE AUDITOR MAY CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR 
THE DISTRICT AT: 
 

Governmental Management Services 
135 W. Central Boulevard 
Orlando, FL, 32801 
TELEPHONE: (407)841‐5524 

 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the 
report release date or for any additional period requested by the Florida Auditor General. If we are 
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
We expect to begin our audit on approximately January 1, 2021 and to issue our reports no later than 
April  30,  2021.  Alan  Jowers  is  the  engagement  partner  and  is  responsible  for  supervising  the 
engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. 
  
Our fee for these services will be $5,350. This agreement provides for a contract period of one (1) 
year. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on 
presentation. Invoices will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms 
of  this agreement.  In accordance with our  firm policies, work may be  suspended  if your account 
becomes 30 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we 
elect  to  terminate  our  services  for nonpayment,  our  engagement will be  deemed  to  have  been 
completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You 
will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket 
costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your 
personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the 
audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 
estimate before we  incur  the  additional  costs. CRI may  terminate  this  agreement with  cause by 
providing thirty (30) days written notice to the District. The District may terminate this agreement 
with or without cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice to CRI. The District will be obligated 
to pay all invoices for services rendered prior to the date of the notice for termination. 



Dispute Resolution 
 
In  the  event of  a dispute between  the parties which  arises out of or  relates  to  this  contract or 
engagement letter, the breach thereof or the services provided or to be provided hereunder, if the 
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree that before  initiating arbitration, 
litigation or other dispute resolution procedure, they will first try, in good faith, to resolve the dispute 
through non‐binding mediation. All parties agree that an alternative form of dispute resolution shall 
not be undertaken by either party until the expiration of fifteen (15) calendar days following notice 
being provided to the other party indicating that the dispute cannot be settled through mediation. 
The mediation  will  be  administered  by  the  American  Arbitration  Association  under  its  Dispute 
Resolution  Rules  for  Professional  Accounting  and  Related  Services  Disputes.  The  costs  of  any 
mediation proceedings shall be shared equally by all parties. 
 
Limitation of Liability 
 
Except as provided in this agreement, CRI shall not be liable for incidental, consequential, exemplary, 
special, punitive or ancillary damages of any kind alleged as a result of any cause of action from this 
agreement, whether arising out of breach of contract, tort or otherwise. If there are unpaid fees owed 
to CRI, this cumulative  liability will be reduced by the value of the unpaid fees with no additional 
interest or charges, as CRI retains the right to offset any sums claimed as due and owed by you, by 
any sums to which it is legally entitled. This limitation shall apply whether or not further damages are 
foreseeable,  or whether  either  party  (or  its  employees,  agents,  officers  or  directors)  have  been 
advised of the possibility of such damages. 
 
Governing Law; Venue 
 
This agreement and performance hereunder shall be governed by the  laws of the State of Florida, 
without reference to any conflict of laws rules or principles. Any action or proceeding arising from or 
relating  to  this agreement must be brought  in a state or  federal court having  jurisdiction  in Leon 
County, Florida, and each party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction and venue of any such court in 
any such action or proceeding. 
 
Electronic Data Communication and Storage and Use of Third Party Service Provider 
 
In  the  interest of  facilitating our  services  to your company, we may  send data over  the  Internet, 
securely store electronic data via computer software applications hosted remotely on the Internet, 
or allow access to data through third‐party vendors’ secured portals or clouds. Electronic data that is 
confidential to your company may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third‐
party service providers to store or transmit this data, such as, but not  limited to, providers of tax 
return preparation  software.  In using  these data  communication  and  storage methods, our  firm 
employs measures  designed  to maintain  data  security. We  use  reasonable  efforts  to  keep  such 
communications and data access secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws and 
professional standards. We also require our third‐party vendors to do the same. 
 
To enhance our services to you, we will use a combination of remote access, secure  file transfer, 
virtual  private  network  or  other  collaborative,  virtual  workspace  or  other  online  tools  or 



environments. Access through any combination of these tools allows for on‐demand and/or real‐time 
collaboration across geographic boundaries and time zones and allows CRI and you to share data, 
engagement  information, knowledge, and deliverables  in a protected environment. While we may 
back up your files to facilitate our services, you are solely responsible for the backup of your files and 
records; therefore, we recommend that you also maintain your own backup files of these records.  
 
We appreciate  the opportunity  to be of  service  to Canopy Community Development District and 
believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any 
questions, please  let us know.  If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described  in this 
letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Canopy Community Development District. 
 
 
 
 
Management Signature:   _____________________       
  
 
Title:    _________________________________________ 
 
 
Governance Signature:   _____________________       
  
 
Title:    _________________________________________ 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION VIII 













C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .
C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

4453 ENTREPOT BLVD Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Page    1
TALLAHASSEE FL 32310 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020

Job:Job: WELAUNEE SEG 3A
PHONE 850-575-0846
FAX 850-575-0940
TOLL FREE

-
Good Until:Good Until:  5/10/2020
To:To: EDWARD
Email:Email: ESCREVEN@CONSOLIDATEDPIPE.COM

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

SEWER PIPESEWER PIPE

   1848.0 8 SDR26 PVC 3034 GS GREEN 14       415.00 CFT       7,669.20
GSKT

    260.0 8 DR18 C-900 PC235 SWR CIS       670.00 CFT       1,742.00
GREEN 20 GSKT

    180.0 8 CL350 DI TJ PIPE     3,550.00 CFT       6,390.00
W/PERMOX-CTF LINING

   3000.0 #10 GREEN HF-CCS PE30 TRACER        17.00 CFT         510.00
WIRE 500

      3.0 8 TRUAN C900XSDR35 PVC ADPT       135.00 EA         405.00

      2.0 8 PVC SWR SW CAP        18.00 EA          36.00

      1.0 8 SDR26 GXGXG SWR TEE        99.00 EA          99.00

      2.0 1253 3M SWR LOCATOR        18.00 EA          36.00

SEWER MANHOLESSEWER MANHOLES

      1.0 6-8 SEWER MANHOLE     1,716.45 EA       1,716.45
SSMH-460

      3.0 8-10 SEWER MANHOLE     1,931.12 EA       5,793.36
SSMH-451,420,400



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    2

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      2.0 SEWER MAHOLE     2,245.85 EA       4,491.70
SSMH-450,465

      3.0 12-14 SEWER MANHOLE     2,481.38 EA       7,444.14
SSMH-430,403,410

      2.0 14-16 SEWER MANHOLE     2,801.71 EA       5,603.42
SSMH-440,404

      1.0 16-18 SEWER MANHOLE     3,138.12 EA       3,138.12
SSMH-405

Subtotal:Subtotal:      28,187.19     28,187.19

WATER PIPEWATER PIPE

   2660.0 12 DR18 PVC C-900 PC 235 CIS     1,466.00 CFT      38,995.60
BLUE 20 GSKT

     80.0 8 DR18 VUL PVC C-900 PC 235       670.00 CFT         536.00
CIS BLUE 20 GSKT

    140.0 6 DR18 PVC C-900 PC 235 CIS       405.00 CFT         567.00
BLUE 20 GSKT

   3500.0 #10 BLUE HF-CCS PE30 BLUE        17.00 CFT         595.00
TRACER WIRE 500

     46.0 12 STAR PRC 1112 BJ RESTRAINT       125.00 EA       5,750.00

      3.0 8 STAR PRC 1108 BJ RESTRAINT        65.00 EA         195.00

      5.0 6 STAR PRC 1106 BJ RESTRAINT        44.00 EA         220.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:      46,858.60     46,858.60

MJ FITTINGSMJ FITTINGS

      1.0 12 CDI MJ 90 L/ACC       450.00 EA         450.00



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    3

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      3.0 12 CDI MJ 45 L/ACC       335.00 EA       1,005.00

      3.0 12 CDI MJ 22-1/2 L/ACC       300.00 EA         900.00

      1.0 12 CDI MJ TEE L/ACC       495.00 EA         495.00

      1.0 12 CDI MJ LP SLV L/ACC       255.00 EA         255.00

      1.0 12X8 CDI MJ TEE L/ACC       398.00 EA         398.00

      1.0 12X6 CDI MJ HYD TEE L/ACC       400.00 EA         400.00

      1.0 8 CDI MJ CAP L/ACC        70.00 EA          70.00

      1.0 6 CDI MJ CAP L/ACC        48.00 EA          48.00

      2.0 12 CDI MJ CAP L/ACC       125.00 EA         250.00

      4.0 3M 1252 WTR LOCATOR        18.00 EA          72.00

     25.0 12 STAR PVC4012 MEGALUG        83.00 EA       2,075.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

     25.0 12 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        17.00 EA         425.00

      2.0 8 STAR PVC4008 MEGALUG        44.00 EA          88.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

      2.0 8 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        12.00 EA          24.00

      1.0 6 STAR PVC4006 MEGALUG        29.00 EA          29.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

      1.0 6 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        11.50 EA          11.50

Subtotal:Subtotal:       6,995.50      6,995.50



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    4

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

12" GATE VALVES12" GATE VALVES

      5.0 12 MUL A2361-23 MJ GV OL NT     1,485.00 EA       7,425.00
L/ACC

      5.0 5-1/4 DOMESTIC 2PC 461S CI VAL        95.00 EA         475.00
BX SCRD W/LID

     10.0 12 STAR PVC4012 MEGALUG        83.00 EA         830.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

     10.0 12 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        17.00 EA         170.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:       8,900.00      8,900.00

8" GATE VALVES8" GATE VALVES

      2.0 8 MUL A2361-23 MJ GV OL NT       775.00 EA       1,550.00
L/ACC

      2.0 5-1/4 DOMESTIC 2PC 461S CI VAL        95.00 EA         190.00
BX SCRD W/LID

      4.0 8 STAR PVC4008 MEGALUG        44.00 EA         176.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

      4.0 8 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        12.00 EA          48.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:       1,964.00      1,964.00

6" GATE VALVE6" GATE VALVE

      1.0 6 MUL A2361-23 MJ GV OL NT       485.00 EA         485.00
L/ACC

      1.0 5-1/4 DOMESTIC 2PC 461S CI VAL        95.00 EA          95.00
BX SCRD W/LID

      1.0 6 STAR PVC4006 MEGALUG        29.00 EA          29.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    5

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      2.0 6 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        11.50 EA          23.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:         632.00        632.00

FIRE HYDRANTSFIRE HYDRANTS

      8.0 12X6 CDI MJ HYD TEE L/ACC       389.00 EA       3,112.00

      8.0 6 MUL A2361-23 MJ GV OL NT       485.00 EA       3,880.00
L/ACC

      8.0 5-1/4 DOMESTIC 2PC 461S CI VAL        95.00 EA         760.00
BX SCRD W/LID

    182.0 6 MCWANE CL-350 SJ DI PIPE 18     1,395.00 CFT       2,538.90

      1.0 6 MCWANE TYTON SURE STOP GSKT        89.00 EA          89.00

      8.0 A423 523509 5-1/4 VO 4' BY OR     1,875.00 EA      15,000.00
5" STORZ L/ ACC

     16.0 12 STAR PVC4012 MEGALUG        83.00 EA       1,328.00
DOMESTIC C900 IPS

     16.0 12 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        17.00 EA         272.00

     16.0 6 STAR SGDP06 MEGALUG DIP        24.00 EA         384.00
DOMESTIC

     24.0 6 06 REG MJ B&G SET L/GLD        11.50 EA         276.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:      27,639.90     27,639.90

STORM PIPESTORM PIPE

   1900.0 18 HP STORM PIPE     1,096.00 CFT      20,824.00



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    6

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

    560.0 24 HP STORM PIPE     1,868.00 CFT      10,460.80

     60.0 30 HP STORM PIPE     3,145.00 CFT       1,887.00

    200.0 36 HP STORM PIPE     3,261.00 CFT       6,522.00

   1200.0 48 HP STORM PIPE     5,365.00 CFT      64,380.00

   1680.0 60 HP STORM PIPE     8,425.00 CFT     141,540.00

Subtotal:Subtotal:     245,613.80    245,613.80

STORM STRUCTURESSTORM STRUCTURES

      1.0 S-734     3,995.00 EA       3,995.00

      1.0 S-T-90     5,072.29 EA       5,072.29

      1.0 S-731     8,315.82 EA       8,315.82

      1.0 S-730     6,889.75 EA       6,889.75

      1.0 S-667     8,293.08 EA       8,293.08

      1.0 S-665     1,147.74 EA       1,147.74

      1.0 S-560     1,134.65 EA       1,134.65

      1.0 S-550     8,429.67 EA       8,429.67

      1.0 S-570     3,620.10 EA       3,620.10



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    7

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      1.0 S-590     3,991.58 EA       3,991.58

      1.0 S-591     1,196.88 EA       1,196.88

      1.0 S-668     1,410.52 EA       1,410.52

      1.0 S-669     4,866.69 EA       4,866.69

      1.0 S-670     3,674.32 EA       3,674.32

      1.0 S-671     3,806.54 EA       3,806.54

      1.0 S-660    11,190.00 EA      11,190.00

      1.0 S-T-80     5,579.01 EA       5,579.01

      1.0 S-672     4,085.97 EA       4,085.97

      1.0 S-T-70     5,567.16 EA       5,567.16

      1.0 S-683     1,410.52 EA       1,410.52

      1.0 S-682     5,567.24 EA       5,567.24

      1.0 S-681     3,905.00 EA       3,905.00

      1.0 S-680     6,948.58 EA       6,948.58

      1.0 S-T-60     6,522.11 EA       6,522.11

      1.0 S-T-50     2,586.72 EA       2,586.72



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    8

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      1.0 S-690     9,647.11 EA       9,647.11

      1.0 S-692     1,147.74 EA       1,147.74

      1.0 S-702     1,147.74 EA       1,147.74

      1.0 S-700     5,510.83 EA       5,510.83

      1.0 S-T-45     2,358.71 EA       2,358.71

      1.0 S-712     3,095.00 EA       3,095.00

      1.0 S-711     2,788.00 EA       2,788.00

      1.0 S-710     3,878.55 EA       3,878.55

      1.0 S-720     3,663.25 EA       3,663.25

      1.0 S-721     3,195.73 EA       3,195.73

      1.0 S-715     8,044.45 EA       8,044.45

      1.0 S-T-40     2,573.45 EA       2,573.45

      1.0 S-724     2,219.00 EA       2,219.00

      1.0 S-725     1,134.65 EA       1,134.65

      1.0 S-T-30     3,083.59 EA       3,083.59

      1.0 S-T-20     1,153.02 EA       1,153.02



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page    9

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

      1.0 S-T-10     3,259.25 EA       3,259.25

      1.0 S-722     5,175.57 EA       5,175.57

      1.0 S-726     2,545.00 EA       2,545.00

      1.0 S-723     2,382.80 EA       2,382.80

      1.0 S-728     1,683.16 EA       1,683.16

      1.0 S-729     1,621.49 EA       1,621.49

      1.0 S-727     2,358.71 EA       2,358.71

     16.0 P5 TOP       805.26 EA      12,884.16

      8.0 P6 TOP     1,263.16 EA      10,105.28

Subtotal:Subtotal:     215,863.18    215,863.18

ADD STRUCTURESADD STRUCTURES

      1.0 S-691     3,428.42 EA       3,428.42

      1.0 SSMH-466     2,622.27 EA       2,622.27

Subtotal:Subtotal:       6,050.69      6,050.69

TURN LANESTURN LANES

    120.0 18 ADS HP STORM PP PIPE     1,096.00 CFT       1,315.20



C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .C O N S O L I D A T E D   P I P E   A N D   S U P P L Y   C O .,  I N C .

C U S T O M E R   Q U O T EC U S T O M E R   Q U O T E

Quote Nbr:Quote Nbr: 249764 001 Quote Date:Quote Date:  4/10/2020 Page   10

QtyQty Size/Wall/DescriptionSize/Wall/Description PricePrice Extended PriceExtended Price

1.0 TYPE C INLET INV. 194.67     1,043.25 EA 1,043.25

1.0 TYPE C INLET INV. 193.67     1,043.25 EA 1,043.25

1.0 TYPE 5 CURB INLET INV. 198.20     1,424.00 EA 1,424.00

1.0 P5 TOP 805.26 EA 805.26

Subtotal:Subtotal: 5,630.965,630.96

Subtotal:

Tax: 7.5%

Total:

611,223.02

45,841.73

657,064.75









SECTION IX 



 

 

 

July 29, 2020 
 
 
Canopy Community Development District  
City of Tallahassee, Florida 

 

 
Subject: Work Authorization Number 5 
 Welaunee Blvd Segment 3B RFP Preparation 

Canopy Community Development District 

 

 
Dear Chairman, Board of Supervisors: 

 
Greenman-Pedersen, Inc. (“Engineer”) is pleased to submit this work authorization Construction 
Administration services to the Canopy Community Development District (“District”).  The Engineer shall act as 
representative for the Owner in providing assistance in managing the Requests for Proposals (“RFP”) process 
for Welaunee Boulevard Segment 3B.  
 
We will provide these services pursuant to our current agreement dated August 18, 2017 (“Engineering 
Agreement”) as follows: 

 
 Scope of Work: 
 

The District will engage Engineer to provide: 
 

Task 1: Request for Proposal (RFP) Preparation: 

• Develop Bid Quantities and related FDOT Pay Items and summary boxes 

• Develop Technical Specifications 

• Assist CDD in the development of the RFP Package (Limited to 2 meetings either physical, or 

virtual not including those listed below) 

• Attend and Conduct Pre-proposal meeting (1 meeting) 

• Attend and hold Bid Opening Meeting (1 meeting) 

• Respond to any Bid Questions (1 round of responses) 

• Issue Addendums to Project (Up to 2 Addendums) 

 

Exclusions: 
 

The following tasks are excluded from this scope of work: 

• Analysis of Bids, or analysis of interlocal 

• Physical meetings, conference or virtual calls not listed above 

• Additional Addendums not listed above 

 
Direct Expenses:   
Any materials testing by an independent testing lab, certified mail, postage, reproduction of plans 
(copies), mileage (out of town travel), etc. that may be encountered on the project will be billed as a 
direct expense. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C82F8E86-BDCC-44E6-8933-CDD24661E894



 

 

 

Fees: 
 

Task 1: Request for Proposal (RFP) Preparation:          $16,500.00 Lump Sum  
 

Additional requested work outside the above listed scope will be performed at hourly rates with prior 
Client Approval.  

 
Direct Expenses:       $500.00  

 
 

Please feel free to reach out to me if there are any misunderstandings to the scope provided above. We look 
forward to beginning this project and look forward to our continued business together. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Tim Stackhouse, PE 
GPI - Senior Project Manager 
 

This proposal, together with the Engineering Agreement, represents the entire understanding between 
the District and Engineer regarding the referenced work authorization. If you wish to accept this work 
authorization, please sign both copies where indicated, and return one complete copy to our office. Upon 
receipt, we will promptly schedule our services. 

 

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED 
 
 

By:    
Authorized Representative of 
Canopy Community Development District 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C82F8E86-BDCC-44E6-8933-CDD24661E894



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION X 





























victoriashelton
Highlight

victoriashelton
Highlight

victoriashelton
Highlight

victoriashelton
Highlight



 
 

Keep It Grassy LLC 
Craig Shelton, Owner 

(850) 542-1055 
*Licensed & Insured* 

 
Prepared for: 
Canopy Community Development District & Officers 
Fleischmann Road & Welaunee Blvd  
Tallahassee, FL 32308 
 

Green Space/HOA Maintenance Package 
Service Description Current 

Services 
Proposed 
Amendment 

Amended 
Services 

Lawn 
Maintenance 

Cut and trim grass 3-4 times monthly during 
the growing season in all common/green 
space areas. Remove leaves & other debris 
during winter months and mow as needed. 
Weed eat around trees/other structures the 
mower can’t reach. 

$2,800 $800 
 

$3,600 

Sidewalk 
Maintenance 

Edge walkways and concrete areas 
2x/month. Blow off sidewalks and keep free 
from leaves, grass cuttings and other debris 
weekly.  

$900 $300 
 

$1,200 

Flower Bed 
Maintenance 

Spread mulch/pine straw in all flower beds 
twice yearly and replenish throughout the 
year as necessary (mulch/pine straw 
invoiced separately). Prune flowers/plants 
throughout the year to promote fresh growth.  

$350  $350 

Shrub 
Maintenance 

Prune shrubbery/hedges twice yearly and 
trim hedges monthly in between prunings to 
maintain shape.  

$400 $50 
 

$450 

Weed 
Control  

Remove weeds from flower beds weekly. 
Apply weed control as necessary.  

$600 $450 
 

$1,050 

Cleaning Remove trash & debris from common areas, 
sidewalks & roads on a weekly basis.  

$200  $200 

 Monthly Total: $5,250 $1,600 $6,850 
 
The lawn service package above, prepared for Canopy Community Development District & 
Officers, has been updated to include the addition of additional green space/sidewalk 
maintenance, an increased number of mows to maintain desired grass height throughout the 
year and more advanced weed control services. 

(850) 542-1055   |   keepitgrassytlh@gmail.com 



EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 



SECTION XI 



SECTION C 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

i. 



   

Bank Date Check No.'s Amount

General Fund 10/30/20 170-171 386.48$                                   
11/20/20 172 221.42$                                   
11/23/20 173 176.64$                                   

784.54$                                   

784.54$                                 

Date Requisition # Payee Description Amount

11/4/20 Series 2018A3 RES - Requisition 11 Baycrest Corporation Pay Application 1 206,705.78$                            
11/12/20 Series 2018A1/2 - Requisition 22 Sandco, LLC Pay Application 11 - Unit 5 216,246.66$                            
11/12/20 Series 2018A1/2 - Requisition 23 Sandco, LLC Pay Application 12 - Unit 5 270,300.59$                            
11/17/20 Series 2018A1/2 - Requisition 24 WS US Sales Company Order # 3556-C21978 – Flygt Equipmen 156,775.00$                            

850,028.03$                            

850,028.03$                        

Canopy
Community Development District

Summary of Operating Checks

September 29, 2020 to November 23, 2020

Summary of Requisitions



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/25/20          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 09/29/2020 - 11/23/2020 ***       CANOPY CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/30/20 00004 10/01/20 83572    202010 310-51300-54000                                     *              175.00
SPECIAL DISTRICT FEE FY21

DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY                                      175.00 000170
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/30/20 00003 9/30/20 00035079 202009 310-51300-48000                                     *              211.48

NOT OF BOARD MEETING 9/29
TALLAHASSEE DEMOCRAT                                              211.48 000171

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/20/20 00003 10/23/20 00035478 202010 310-51300-48000                                     *              221.42

NOT BD MTG 10/23/20
TALLAHASSEE DEMOCRAT                                              221.42 000172

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/23/20 00003 9/24/20 00035079 202009 310-51300-48000                                     *              176.64

NOT OF MTG 9/24/20
TALLAHASSEE DEMOCRAT                                              176.64 000173

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                    784.54

TOTAL FOR REGISTER                  784.54

CANO CANOPY CDD     KCOSTA    





























ii.



10/31/20

Canopy
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
October	31,	2020



1

2-3

4

5

6

7

8-9

10

11-13

14-15

16-17

18-19

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Fund - Series 2018 A1 & A2

Debt Service Fund - Series 2018 A3

Series 2018 A3 - General Construction Schedule

Series 2018 A3 - Restricted Construction Schedule

Series 2018 A4 Construction Schedule

Debt Service Fund - Series 2018 A4

Capital Projects Fund 

Month to Month

Long Term Debt

Series 2018 A1/2 Construction Schedule



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
October	31,	2020

	 General	 Debt	Service Capital	Projects Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	 	 	
Cash
Operating 3,320$																 -$																				 -$																				 3,320$																					
Capital	Projects -$																				 -$																				 2,598$																 2,598$																					
Welaunee -$																				 -$																				 425$																			 425$																								

Investments
Series	2018	A1	&	A2
Reserve	A1 -$																				 82,146$													 -$																				 82,146$																		
Revenue	A1 -$																				 72,340$													 -$																				 72,340$																		
Revenue	A2 -$																				 141,451$											 -$																				 141,451$																
Prepayment	A2 -$																				 13,739$													 -$																				 13,739$																		
Construction -$																				 -$																				 2,128,959$								 2,128,959$													

Series	2018	A3
Reserve	A3 -$																				 104,688$											 -$																				 104,688$																
Revenue	A3 -$																				 85,620$													 -$																				 85,620$																		
Construction -$																				 -$																				 10,396$													 10,396$																		
Construction-Restricted -$																				 -$																				 808,744$											 808,744$																

Series	2018	A4
Reserve	A4 -$																				 32,714$													 -$																				 32,714$																		
Revenue	A4 -$																				 45,442$													 -$																				 45,442$																		
Construction -$																				 -$																				 3,557$																 3,557$																					

Prepaid	Expenses 6,140$																 -$																				 -$																				 6,140$																					
Due	from	Developer 50,000$													 -$																				 -$																				 50,000$																		

Total	Assets 59,460$													 578,140$										 2,954,679$							 3,592,278$												

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 45,332$													 -$																				 21,540$													 66,872$																		
Retainage	Payable -$																				 -$																				 261,967$											 261,967$																
Due	To	Developer -$																				 -$																				 1,962,803$								 1,962,803$													

Total	Liabilities 45,332$													 -$																			 2,246,311$							 2,291,643$												

Fund	Balances: 	 	 	
Unassigned 14,128$													 -$																				 -$																				 14,128$																		
Restricted	For	Debt	Service	2018	A1	&	A2 -$																				 309,676$											 -$																				 309,676$																
Restricted	For	Debt	Service	2018	A3 -$																				 190,308$											 -$																				 190,308$																
Restricted	For	Debt	Service	2018	A4 -$																				 78,156$													 -$																				 78,156$																		
Assigned	For	Capital	Projects	2018	A1	&	A3 -$																				 -$																				 2,088,950$								 2,088,950$													
Assigned	For	Capital	Projects	2018	A3 -$																				 -$																				 819,140$											 819,140$																
Assigned	For	Capital	Projects	2018	A4 -$																				 -$																				 3,557$																 3,557$																					
Assigned	For	Capital	Projects	 -$																				 -$																				 (2,203,704)$						 (2,203,704)$											
Assigned	For	Capital	Projects	-	Welaunee -$																				 -$																				 425$																			 425$																								

Total	Fund	Balances 14,128$													 578,140$										 708,369$										 1,300,636$												

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 59,460$													 578,140$											 2,954,679$								 3,592,278$													

1



Canopy
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	10/31/20 Thru	10/31/20 Variance

Revenues
	
Assessments	-	Tax	Roll	 47,052$																								 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Assessments	-	Direct	(Administrative	Only) 99,022$																								 8,252$																											 -$																																						 (8,252)$																									
Developer	Contributions 174,651$																					 14,554$																								 -$																																						 (14,554)$																						
Interest	Income 500$																															 42$																																		 -$																																						 (42)$																																
Miscellaneous	Income	 2,500$																											 208$																															 -$																																						 (208)$																													

Total		Revenues 323,725$																					 23,056$																								 -$																																						 (23,056)$																						

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
FICA -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Engineering 12,000$																								 1,000$																											 -$																																						 1,000$																											
Arbitrage 450$																															 38$																																		 -$																																						 38$																																		
Assessment	Roll 2,500$																											 2,500$																											 2,500$																											 -$																																						
Dissemination 8,000$																											 667$																															 667$																															 (0)$																																			
Attorney 25,000$																								 2,083$																											 -$																																						 2,083$																											
Annual	Audit 5,000$																											 417$																															 -$																																						 417$																															
Trustee	Fees 10,000$																								 833$																															 -$																																						 833$																															
Management	Fees 35,000$																								 2,917$																											 2,917$																											 (0)$																																			
Information	Technology 3,700$																											 308$																															 208$																															 100$																															
Travel 50$																																		 4$																																					 -$																																						 4$																																					
Telephone 250$																															 21$																																		 -$																																						 21$																																		
Postage 500$																															 42$																																		 2$																																					 40$																																		
Printing	&	Binding 1,500$																											 125$																															 -$																																						 125$																															
Insurance-Liability 6,000$																											 500$																															 -$																																						 500$																															
Legal	Advertising 2,500$																											 208$																															 221$																															 (13)$																																
Other	Current	Charges 3,000$																											 250$																															 138$																															 112$																															
Office	Supplies 500$																															 42$																																		 0$																																					 42$																																		
Dues 175$																															 175$																															 175$																															 -$																																						

Total	General	&	Administrative: 116,125$																					 12,129$																								 6,828$																											 5,301$																											

Maintenance

Common	Area:
Landscape	Maintenance 63,000$																								 5,250$																											 6,850$																											 (1,600)$																									
Landscape	Contingency 10,600$																								 883$																															 -$																																						 883$																															
Plant	Replacement 7,500$																											 625$																															 -$																																						 625$																															
Irrigation	-	Repairs 5,000$																											 417$																															 -$																																						 417$																															
Irrigation	-	Water 10,000$																								 833$																															 -$																																						 833$																															
Irrigation	-	Electric 2,500$																											 208$																															 -$																																						 208$																															
Wetland	Mitigation	and	Monitoring 8,400$																											 700$																															 -$																																						 700$																															
Lake	Maintenance 7,500$																											 625$																															 -$																																						 625$																															
Repairs	and	Maintenance 12,500$																								 1,042$																											 -$																																						 1,042$																											
Operating	Supplies 1,250$																											 104$																															 -$																																						 104$																															

2



Canopy
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	10/31/20 Thru	10/31/20 Variance

Amenity	Center
Amenity	Management	Staffing 18,750$																								 1,563$																											 -$																																						 1,563$																											
Pool	Attendants 3,750$																											 313$																															 -$																																						 313$																															
Janitorial 3,750$																											 313$																															 -$																																						 313$																															
Pool	Maintenance	 3,750$																											 313$																															 -$																																						 313$																															
Pool	Chemicals 1,875$																											 156$																															 -$																																						 156$																															
Pool	Permits 188$																															 16$																																		 -$																																						 16$																																		
Pool	-	Electric 3,750$																											 313$																															 -$																																						 313$																															
Pool	-	Water 250$																															 21$																																		 -$																																						 21$																																		
Telephone 625$																															 52$																																		 -$																																						 52$																																		
Water/Sewer 1,250$																											 104$																															 -$																																						 104$																															
Gas 125$																															 10$																																		 -$																																						 10$																																		
Trash 600$																															 50$																																		 -$																																						 50$																																		
Pest	Control 300$																															 25$																																		 -$																																						 25$																																		
Termite	Bond 188$																															 16$																																		 -$																																						 16$																																		
Insurance	-	Property 6,250$																											 521$																															 -$																																						 521$																															
Cable/Internet 1,875$																											 156$																															 -$																																						 156$																															
Access	Cards 625$																															 52$																																		 -$																																						 52$																																		
Activities 3,750$																											 313$																															 -$																																						 313$																															
Security/Alarms/Repair 8,750$																											 729$																															 -$																																						 729$																															
Repairs	and	Maintenance 8,750$																											 729$																															 -$																																						 729$																															
Office	Supplies 500$																															 42$																																		 -$																																						 42$																																		
Holiday	Decorations 1,250$																											 104$																															 -$																																						 104$																															

Other
Contingency 1,250$																											 104$																															 -$																																						 104$																															
Capital	Reserve 7,200$																											 600$																															 -$																																						 600$																															

Total	Maintenance 207,600$																					 17,300$																								 6,850$																											 10,450$																								

Total	Expenditures 323,725$																					 29,429$																								 13,678$																								 15,751$																								
.

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 (13,678)$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 27,806$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 14,128$																								

3



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2018	A1	&	A2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	10/31/20 Thru	10/31/20 Variance

Revenues
	
Assessments	-	Tax	Roll	A1	(Platted	Lots) 30,132$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Assessments	-	Direct	A1 134,594$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Assessments	-	Direct	A2 282,286$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Assessments	-	Prepayments -$																																						 -$																																							 9,333$																											 9,333$																											
Interest	Income 500$																															 42$																																		 2$																																					 (40)$																																

Total		Revenues 447,512$																					 42$																																		 9,335$																											 9,293$																											

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Series	2018	A1
Interest	-	11/1 66,971$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Principal	-	5/1 30,000$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	5/1 66,971$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Series	2018	A2
Interest	-	11/1 141,143$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	5/1 141,143$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 446,228$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/Out -$																																						 -$																																							 1$																																					 -$																																						

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																							 1$																																					 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 1,284$																											 9,333$																											

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 378,035$																					 300,342$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 379,319$																					 309,676$																					

4



Canopy
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2018	A3

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	10/31/20 Thru	10/31/20 Variance

Revenues
	
Assessments	-	Direct	(Unplatted	Lots) 170,938$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	Income 500$																															 42$																																		 2$																																					 (40)$																																

Total		Revenues 171,438$																					 42$																																		 2$																																					 (40)$																																

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Interest	-	11/1 85,469$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	5/1 85,469$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 170,938$																					 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/Out 500$																															 42$																																		 2$																																					 -$																																						

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) 500$																															 42$																																		 2$																																					 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 1$																																					 0$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 85,617$																								 190,308$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 85,618$																								 190,308$																					

5



Canopy
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2018	A4

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	10/31/20 Thru	10/31/20 Variance

Revenues
	
Assessments	-	Tax	Roll	(Platted	Lots) 65,612$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	Income 250$																															 21$																																		 1$																																					 (20)$																																

Total		Revenues 65,862$																								 21$																																		 1$																																					 (20)$																																

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Interest	-	11/1 24,148$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Principal	-	5/1 15,000$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	5/1 24,148$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 63,296$																								 -$																																							 -$																																						 -$																																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/Out -$																																						 -$																																							 1$																																					 -$																																						

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																							 1$																																					 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 2,566$																											 1$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 45,226$																								 78,156$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 47,792$																								 78,156$																								

6



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Funds
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	October	31,	2020

Series	2018	A1	&	A2 Series	2018	A3 Series	2018	A4 Capital	Projects Welaunee
Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Total

Revenues
	
Interest 37$																																		 13$																																		 0$																																					 -$																																						 -$																																						 50$																																		

Total		Revenues 37$																																		 13$																																		 0$																																					 -$																																						 -$																																						 50$																																		

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Capital	Outlay	-	Construction -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Capital	Outlay	-	General -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Professional	Fees -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 1,663$																											 -$																																						 1,663$																											
Miscellaneous -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 77$																																		 15$																																		 92$																																		

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 1,740$																											 15$																																		 1,755$																											

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/Out (1)$																																			 (2)$																																			 (1)$																																			 -$																																						 -$																																						 (4)$																																			

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) (1)$																																			 (2)$																																			 (1)$																																			 -$																																						 -$																																						 (4)$																																			

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 38$																																		 15$																																		 1$																																					 (1,740)$																									 (15)$																																 (1,701)$																									

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 2,088,912$																	 819,125$																					 3,557$																											 (2,201,964)$															 440$																															 710,069$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 2,088,950$																	 819,140$																					 3,557$																											 (2,203,704)$															 425$																															 708,369$																					

7



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Total

Revenues
	
Assessments	-	Tax	Roll	 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Assessments	-	Direct	(Administrative	Only) -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Developer	Contributions -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Interest	Income -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Miscellaneous	Income	 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												

Total		Revenues -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Engineering -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Arbitrage -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Assessment	Roll 2,500$																 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 2,500$																
Dissemination 667$																				 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 667$																				
Attorney -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Annual	Audit -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Trustee	Fees -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Management	Fees 2,917$																 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 2,917$																
Information	Technology 208$																				 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 208$																				
Travel -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Telephone -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Postage 2$																										 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 2$																										
Printing	&	Binding -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Insurance-Liability -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Legal	Advertising 221$																				 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 221$																				
Other	Current	Charges 138$																				 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 138$																				
Office	Supplies 0$																										 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 0$																										
Dues 175$																				 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 175$																				

Total	General	&	Administrative: 6,828$																 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 6,828$																

Maintenance

Common	Area:
Landscape	Maintenance 6,850$																 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 6,850$																
Landscape	Contingency -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Plant	Replacement -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Irrigation	-	Repairs -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Irrigation	-	Water -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Irrigation	-	Electric -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Wetland	Mitigation	and	Monitoring -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Lake	Maintenance -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Repairs	and	Maintenance -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Operating	Supplies -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												

8



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Total

Amenity	Center
Amenity	Management	Staffing -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	Attendants -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Janitorial -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	Maintenance	 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	Chemicals -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	Permits -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	-	Electric -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pool	-	Water -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Telephone -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Water/Sewer -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Gas -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Trash -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Pest	Control -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Termite	Bond -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Insurance	-	Property -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Cable/Internet -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Access	Cards -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Activities -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Security/Alarms/Repair -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Repairs	and	Maintenance -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Office	Supplies -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Holiday	Decorations -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												

Other
Contingency -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												
Capital	Reserve -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												

Total	Maintenance 6,850$																 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 6,850$																

Total	Expenditures 13,678$													 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 13,678$													

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) (13,678)$											 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 (13,678)$											

9



Canopy
Community	Development	District

INTEREST RATE: 6.000%, 6.150%
MATURITY DATE: 5/1/2049
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 50% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $82,146
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $82,146

BONDS OUTSTANDING - 11/08/18 $2,225,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT - 05/01/20 ($25,000)
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $2,200,000

INTEREST RATE: 6.150%
MATURITY DATE: 5/1/2049
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION NOT SECURED - N/A
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $0
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $0

BONDS OUTSTANDING - 11/08/18 $5,480,000
LESS: SPECIAL CALL - 05/01/19 ($110,000)
LESS: SPECIAL CALL - 08/01/19 ($305,000)
LESS: SPECIAL CALL - 11/01/19 ($405,000)
LESS: SPECIAL CALL - 02/01/20 ($60,000)
LESS: SPECIAL CALL - 05/01/20 ($10,000)
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $4,590,000

INTEREST RATE: 6.250%
MATURITY DATE: 5/1/2049
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 50% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $104,688
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $104,688

BONDS OUTSTANDING - 11/08/18 $2,735,000
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $2,735,000

INTEREST RATE: 5.000%, 5.150%
MATURITY DATE: 5/1/2049
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 50% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $32,714
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $32,714

BONDS OUTSTANDING - 11/08/18 $965,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT - 05/01/20 ($15,000)
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $950,000

SERIES 2018A-3, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2018A-4, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS

Long Term Debt Report

SERIES 2018A-1, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2018A-2, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS

10



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2019

4/5/19 1 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	#	1	-	Canopy	Unit	3	Phase	1	&	2 360,078.30$								
6/14/19 2 Ox	Bottom	Mortgage	Holdings,	LLC Unit	1	Phase	6	Crestline	Road,	Fontana	Road	Improvement	Reimbursement 995,631.07$								

TOTAL 1,355,709.37$				

Fiscal	Year	2019
12/1/18 Interest 3,084.22$													
12/1/18 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 34.66$																		
1/1/19 Interest 12,421.76$											
1/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 139.54$																
2/1/19 Interest 13,927.37$											
2/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 156.19$																
3/1/19 Interest 12,947.48$											
3/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 144.94$																
4/1/19 Interest 14,360.76$											
4/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 160.47$																
5/1/19 Interest 13,336.50$											
5/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 155.29$																
5/14/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 21,146.93$											
6/1/19 Interest 13,737.71$											
6/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 160.47$																
7/1/19 Interest 12,269.23$											
7/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 155.29$																
8/1/19 Interest 11,603.76$											
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 156.98$																
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 17.32$																		
9/1/19 Interest 10,592.86$											
9/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 143.02$																

TOTAL 140,852.75$							

7,309,992.26$				
140,852.75$							

(1,355,709.37)$		

6,095,135.64$				

Exhibit	"A"

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A1/2

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	11/8/18
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/19
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/19

11



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Exhibit	"A"

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A1/2

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2020

11/25/19 3 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	4	-	Unit	3 303,885.90$								
11/25/19 4 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	1	-	Unit	4	&	5 165,285.00$								
1/23/20 5 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	2	&	3	-	Unit	4	&	5 640,325.70$								
1/23/20 6 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	5	-	Unit	3 1,350.00$													
3/19/20 7 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	4	-	Unit	4	&	5 146,610.00$								
3/19/20 8 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	6	-	Unit	3 8,352.00$													
4/7/20 9 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	8	-	Unit	3 125,054.80$								
4/7/20 10 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	6	-	Unit	4	&	5 125,302.50$								
5/6/20 11 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	5	-	Unit	4	&	5 54,000.00$											
5/6/20 12 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	7	-	Unit	3 4,959.00$													
5/21/20 13 Consolidated	Pipe	&	Supply	Company,	Inc. Construction	Materials	-	Unit	4	&	5 825,293.44$								
7/8/20 14 Consolidated	Pipe	&	Supply	Company,	Inc. Construction	Materials	-	Unit	4	&	5 146,523.40$								
7/9/20 15 Consolidated	Pipe	&	Supply	Company,	Inc. Construction	Materials	-	Unit	4	&	5 194,844.89$								
7/20/20 16 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	7	-	Unit	4	&	5 125,724.80$								
7/20/20 17 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	8	-	Unit	5 701,133.36$								
8/10/20 18 Consolidated	Pipe	&	Supply	Company,	Inc. Construction	Materials	-	Unit	4	&	5 113,592.30$								
8/26/20 19 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	9	-	Unit	5 197,780.24$								
9/23/20 20 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	9	-	Unit	3 32,480.00$											
9/25/20 21 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	10	-	Unit	5 105,201.01$								

TOTAL 4,017,698.34$				

Fiscal	Year	2020
10/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 131.66$																
10/1/19 Interest 9,767.11$													
11/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 125.02$																
11/1/19 Interest 9,290.87$													
12/1/19 Interest 7,668.90$													
12/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 104.65$																
1/1/20 Interest 7,441.24$													
1/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 108.14$																
2/1/20 Interest 7,186.26$													
2/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 107.85$																
3/1/20 Interest 6,000.33$													
3/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 98.08$																		
4/1/20 Interest 2,429.03$													
4/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 39.73$																		
5/1/20 Interest 287.67$																
5/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 5.05$																					
6/1/20 Interest 272.36$																
6/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 5.22$																					
7/1/20 Interest 214.92$																
7/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 4.71$																					
8/1/20 Interest 134.16$																
8/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 3.48$																					
9/1/20 Interest 55.52$																		
9/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 1.84$																					

TOTAL 51,483.80$										

6,095,135.64$				
51,483.80$										

(4,017,698.34)$		

2,128,921.10$				

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/19
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

12



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Exhibit	"A"

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A1/2

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2021

TOTAL -$																						

Fiscal	Year	2021
10/1/20 Interest 36.67$																		
10/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 1.35$																					

TOTAL 38.02$																		

2,128,921.10$				
38.02$																		
-$																						

2,128,959.12$				

73.51%

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/20
Interest	Earned	thru	10/30/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	10/30/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Percentage	Completed

13



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2019

11/8/18 1 Ox	Bottom	Mortgage	Holdings,	LLC Reimbursement	for	construction	costs	paid	by	Developer 1,019,257.82$								

TOTAL 1,019,257.82$						

Fiscal	Year	2019
12/1/18 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 44.17$																					
1/1/19 Interest 0.07$																							
1/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 177.83$																		
2/1/19 Interest 0.41$																							
2/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 199.05$																		
3/1/19 Interest 0.71$																							
3/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 184.71$																		
4/1/19 Interest 1.15$																							
4/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 204.50$																		
5/1/19 Interest 1.52$																							
5/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 197.90$																		
5/14/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 7,506.37$															
6/1/19 Interest 10.48$																					
6/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 204.50$																		
7/1/19 Interest 16.47$																					
7/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 197.90$																		
8/1/19 Interest 17.09$																					
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 200.05$																		
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 6.15$																							
9/1/19 Interest 15.96$																					
9/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 182.27$																		

TOTAL 9,369.26$														

1,019,257.82$						
9,369.26$														

(1,019,257.82)$					

9,369.26$														

Exhibit	"A"

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A3	-	General

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	11/8/18
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/19
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/19

14



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Exhibit	"A"

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A3	-	General

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2020

TOTAL -$																								

Fiscal	Year	2020
10/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 167.79$																		
10/1/19 Interest 14.98$																					
11/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 159.33$																		
11/1/19 Interest 14.53$																					
12/1/19 Interest 12.37$																					
12/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 133.37$																		
1/1/20 Interest 12.98$																					
1/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 137.81$																		
2/1/20 Interest 13.15$																					
2/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 137.44$																		
3/1/20 Interest 12.13$																					
3/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 125.00$																		
4/1/20 Interest 4.97$																							
4/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 50.63$																					
5/1/20 Interest 0.64$																							
5/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 6.44$																							
6/1/20 Interest 0.66$																							
6/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 6.65$																							
7/1/20 Interest 0.60$																							
7/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 6.01$																							
8/1/20 Interest 0.44$																							
8/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 4.43$																							
9/1/20 Interest 0.23$																							
9/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 2.35$																							

TOTAL 1,024.93$														

9,369.26$														
1,024.93$														

-$																								

10,394.19$												

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2021

TOTAL -$																								

Fiscal	Year	2021
10/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 1.72$																							
10/1/20 Interest 0.17$																							

TOTAL 1.89$																						

10,394.19$												
1.89$																						
-$																								

10,396.08$												

100.00%

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/20
Interest	Earned	thru	10/31/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	10/31/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Percentage	Completed

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/19
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

15



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2019

TOTAL -$																												

Fiscal	Year	2019
12/1/18 Interest 632.88$																						
1/1/19 Interest 2,548.92$																			
2/1/19 Interest 2,857.81$																			
3/1/19 Interest 2,656.69$																			
4/1/19 Interest 2,946.62$																			
5/1/19 Interest 2,857.44$																			
6/1/19 Interest 2,958.28$																			
7/1/19 Interest 2,868.06$																			
8/1/19 Interest 2,905.11$																			
9/1/19 Interest 2,651.93$																			

TOTAL 25,883.74$															

1,500,000.00$										
25,883.74$															

-$																												

1,525,883.74$										

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2020

10/31/19 1 Conn	&	Associates Clubhouse	Architectural	Services 37,200.00$																
1/23/20 2 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	2 168,773.81$														
1/23/20 3 Conn	&	Associates Clubhouse	Architectural	Services 9,300.00$																			
1/24/20 4 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	1 299,755.14$														
5/5/20 5 Conn	&	Associates Clubhouse	Architectural	Services 2,250.00$																			
3/19/20 7 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	3 175,786.82$														
5/6/20 8 Conn	&	Associates Clubhouse	Architectural	Services 2,250.00$																			
7/20/20 9 Conn	&	Associates Clubhouse	Architectural	Services 5,300.00$																			
7/31/20 10 Sandco,	LLC Pay	Application	4 28,890.54$																

TOTAL 729,506.31$													

Fiscal	Year	2020
10/1/19 Interest 2,445.15$																			
11/1/19 Interest 2,324.29$																			
12/1/19 Interest 1,902.32$																			
1/1/20 Interest 1,968.38$																			
2/1/20 Interest 1,796.15$																			
3/1/20 Interest 1,219.18$																			
4/1/20 Interest 489.71$																						
5/1/20 Interest 52.08$																								
6/1/20 Interest 53.58$																								
7/1/20 Interest 48.36$																								
8/1/20 Interest 35.57$																								
9/1/20 Interest 18.14$																								

TOTAL 12,352.91$															

1,525,883.74$										
12,352.91$															

(729,506.31)$											

808,730.34$													Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/19
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/20

Exhibit	"A"

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A3	-	Restricted

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	11/8/18
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/19
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/19

16



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Exhibit	"A"

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A3	-	Restricted

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2021

TOTAL -$																												
Fiscal	Year	2021

10/1/20 Interest 13.26$																								

TOTAL 13.26$																							

808,730.34$													
13.26$																							
-$																												

808,743.60$													

48.63%Percentage	Completed

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/20
Interest	Earned	thru	10/31/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	10/31/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

17



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2019

11/8/18 1 Ox	Bottom	Mortgage	Holdings	LLC Reimbursement	for	construction	costs	paid	by	Developer 893,101.00$					

TOTAL 893,101.00$				

Fiscal	Year	2019
12/1/18 Interest 13.80$															
1/1/19 Interest 0.02$																		
1/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 55.57$															
2/1/19 Interest 0.13$																		
2/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 62.20$															
3/1/19 Interest 0.22$																		
3/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 57.72$															
4/1/19 Interest 0.36$																		
4/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 63.91$															
5/1/19 Interest 0.48$																		
5/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 61.84$															
5/14/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 2,648.52$										
6/1/19 Interest 3.62$																		
6/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 63.91$															
7/1/19 Interest 5.72$																		
7/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 61.84$															
8/1/19 Interest 5.92$																		
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 62.52$															
8/1/19 Transfer	from	Cost	of	Issuance 2.17$																		
9/1/19 Interest 5.52$																		
9/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 56.96$															

TOTAL 3,232.95$									

893,101.79$				
3,232.95$									

(893,101.00)$			

3,233.74$									

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2020

TOTAL -$																			

Exhibit	"A"

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A4

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	11/8/18
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/19
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/19

18



Canopy
Community	Development	District

Exhibit	"A"

Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2018	A4

Fiscal	Year	2020
10/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 52.43$															
10/1/19 Interest 5.17$																		
11/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 49.79$															
11/1/19 Interest 5.01$																		
12/1/19 Interest 4.26$																		
12/1/19 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 41.68$															
1/1/20 Interest 4.46$																		
1/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 43.07$															
2/1/20 Interest 4.51$																		
2/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 42.95$															
3/1/20 Interest 4.16$																		
3/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 39.06$															
4/1/20 Interest 1.70$																		
4/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 15.82$															
5/1/20 Interest 0.22$																		
5/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 2.01$																		
6/1/20 Interest 0.23$																		
6/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 2.08$																		
7/1/20 Interest 0.20$																		
7/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 1.88$																		
8/1/20 Interest 0.15$																		
8/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 1.39$																		
9/1/20 Interest 0.08$																		
9/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 0.73$																		

TOTAL 323.04$												

3,233.74$									
323.04$												

-$																			

3,556.78$									

Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2021

TOTAL -$																			

Fiscal	Year	2021
10/1/20 Transfer	from	Reserve	Fund 0.54$																		
10/1/20 Interest 0.06$																		

TOTAL 0.60$																	

3,556.78$									
0.60$																	
-$																			

3,557.38$									

100.00%

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Percentage	Completed

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/19
Interest	Earned	thru	09/30/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	09/30/20

Remaining	Project	(Construction)	Fund

Project	(Construction)	Fund	at	09/30/20
Interest	Earned	thru	10/31/20
Requisitions	Paid	thru	10/31/20

19


	CCD Landscape Maintenance Contract.pdf
	Scannable Document on Nov 12, 2020 at 7_58_39 AM.pdf
	DOCS-#604262-v2-Landscape_Maintenance_AGreement_with_Keep_it_Grassy_-_Canopy (1).pdf
	Updated Canopy Maintenance Package v2 (2).pdf
	2DOCS-#604262-v2-Landscape_Maintenance_AGreement_with_Keep_it_Grassy_-_Canopy (1).pdf

	CAN Financials Oct20.pdf
	cover
	toc
	bs
	gf
	ds
	dsa3
	dsa4
	cpf
	mont
	ltd
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A1:2
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3RES
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A4

	CAN Financials Oct20.pdf
	cover
	toc
	bs
	gf
	ds
	dsa3
	dsa4
	cpf
	mont
	ltd
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A1:2
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3RES
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A4

	CAN Financials Oct20.pdf
	cover
	toc
	bs
	gf
	ds
	dsa3
	dsa4
	cpf
	mont
	ltd
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A1:2
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A3RES
	Canopy FY20 Construction Schedule A4




